



"We Care"

Bylaws
&
Articles of Incorporation
November 18, 2016

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That we, the undersigned, natural persons of full age and citizens of the United States and of the State of Idaho, for the purpose of forming a non-profit cooperative association pursuant to the provisions of Chapter X of Title XXIX, Idaho Code, Annotated, 1932, and all laws amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto, including but not limited to the provisions of Chapter XXX of Title XXX, do hereby certify as follows:

ARTICLE I.

The name of this Corporation is: "CLEARWATER POWER COMPANY".

ARTICLE II.

The purpose or purposes for which the Corporation is formed are:

- (a) For all legal purposes including, but not limited to generate, manufacture, purchase, acquire and accumulate electric energy and capacity for its members and to transmit, distribute, furnish, sell and dispose of such electric energy and capacity, and to construct, erect, purchase, lease as lessee and in any manner acquire, own, hold, maintain, operate, sell, dispose of, lease as lessor, exchange and mortgage plants, buildings, works, machinery, supplies, apparatus, equipment and electric transmission and distribution lines or systems necessary, convenient or useful for carrying out and accomplishing any or all of the foregoing purposes;
- (b) To acquire, own, hold, use, exercise and, to the extent permitted by law, to sell, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate and in any manner dispose of franchises, rights, privileges, licenses, rights of way and easements necessary, useful or appropriate to accomplish any or all of the purposes of the Corporation;
- (c) To purchase, receive, lease as lessee, or in any other manner to acquire, own, hold, maintain, use convey, sell, lease as lessor, exchange, mortgage, pledge or otherwise dispose of any and all real and personal property, tangible or intangibles, or any interest therein necessary, useful or appropriate to enable the Corporation to accomplish any or all of its purposes;
- (d) To consult with and advise its members in the installation of electrical fixtures, machinery, apparatus and equipment of all kinds and character such as are applicable to the use of electric energy and capacity, in order to promote the efficient use of electric energy and capacity;
- (e) To borrow money, to make and issue bonds, notes and other evidences of indebtedness, secured or unsecured, for moneys borrowed or in payment for property acquired or for any of the other objects or purposes of the Corporation and to secure the payment of such bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness by mortgage or mortgages, or deed or deeds of trust upon, or by the pledge of or other lien upon, all or any of the property, rights, privileges or permits of the Corporations, wheresoever situated, acquired or to be acquired; and to receive, acquire, endorse, pledge, guarantee, hypothecate, transfer or otherwise dispose of notes and other evidences of indebtedness and all security therefor;
- (f) To do and perform, either for itself or its members, any and all acts and things, and to have

and exercise any and all powers, as may be necessary or convenient to accomplish any or all of the foregoing purposes or as may be permitted by the Act under which the Corporation is formed in the State of Idaho and in any other state of the United States of America.

ARTICLE III.

The Corporation shall have perpetual existence.

ARTICLE IV.

The location and post office address of the registered office of the corporation is 4230 Hatwai Road, P.O. Box 997, Lewiston, Nez Perce County, Idaho.

ARTICLE V.

Section 1. The Corporation is formed not for profit and shall have no capital stock.

Section 2. The undersigned incorporators shall be members in the Corporation. In addition to the undersigned incorporators, any person, firm or corporation or body politic may become a member in the Corporation by: (a) paying in full such membership fee as shall be specified in the Bylaws of the Corporation; (b) agreeing to purchase from the Corporation the amount of electric energy and capacity specified in the Bylaws; and (c) agreeing to comply with and be bound by these Articles of Incorporation, and the Bylaws of the Corporation and any amendments thereto, and by such rules and regulations and written policies as may from time to time be adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation; provided, however, that no person, firm, corporation or body politic except the undersigned incorporators or any person, firm, corporation or body politic accepted for membership by the members at any meeting thereof, shall become a member in the Corporation unless and until he/she or it has been accepted for membership by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors of the Corporation. No person, partnership or corporation shall own more than one (1) membership in the Corporation.

Section 3. Each member shall as soon as electric energy and capacity shall be available, purchase electric energy and capacity from the Corporation as provided in the Bylaws of the Corporation, and pay therefore as provided in said Bylaws at rates which shall from time to time be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors. Each member shall also pay all obligations which may from time to time become due and payable by such member to the Corporation as and when the same become due and payable.

Section 4. Each member shall be entitled to one (1) vote and no more upon each matter submitted to a vote at any meeting of the members at which a quorum is present and questions shall be decided by a vote of a majority of the members present. The election of Directors shall be conducted in the manner prescribed in the Bylaws of the Corporation. Cumulative voting for election of Directors shall not be permitted.

Section 5. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Bylaws, at regular Annual Meetings of the Members of the Corporation at least twenty percent (20%) of the total number of members of the Corporation present shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meetings so long as the number of members does not exceed one hundred (100) and in case the number of

members exceeds one hundred (100), then, and in such case, the members present at regular Annual Meetings of the Members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meetings.

Section 6. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Bylaws, at Special Meetings of the Members at least twenty percent (20%) of the total number of members of the Corporation present shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meetings so long as the number of members does not exceed three hundred (300) and in case the total number of members exceeds three hundred (300), then, and in such case, not less than seventy-five (75) members present, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meetings.

Section 7. The Bylaws of the Corporation may define and fix the duties and responsibilities of the members and prescribe such other terms and conditions upon which members shall be admitted to and retain membership in the Corporation not inconsistent with these Articles of Incorporation or the Act under which the Corporation is organized.

ARTICLE VI.

The names and post office addresses of the incorporators are as follows:

Names	Post Office Addresses
P.J. Miller	- Lewiston, Idaho
John George	- Culdesac, Idaho
K. Summers	- Lenore, Idaho
L. P. Teats	- Reubens, Idaho
Dan Lyle	- Peck, Idaho

ARTICLE VII.

The Corporation shall at all times be operated on a cooperative non-profit basis for the mutual benefit of its patrons. The Corporation's operations shall be so conducted that all patrons will through their patronage furnish capital for the Corporation in the manner prescribed in the Bylaws. No interest or dividend shall be paid or payable by the Corporation on any capital furnished by its patrons. The Corporation shall account on a patronage basis to all its patrons for all amounts received and receivable by the Corporation from the furnishing of electric energy and capacity as provided in the Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII.

Section 1. The Directors of the Corporation shall be members of the Corporation.

Section 2. The Bylaws of the Corporation may be amended as provided by the laws of the State of Idaho.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and affixed our seals this 26th day of April, 1937.

_____/S/ P. J. MILLER (SEAL)

_____/S/ JOHN GEORGE (SEAL)

_____/S/ K. SUMMERS (SEAL)

_____/S/ L. P. TEATS (SEAL)

_____/S/ DAN LYLE (SEAL)

STATE OF IDAHO)
 : ss
COUNTY OF NEZ PERCE)

On this 26th day of April, 1937, before me, Edward C. Butler, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared P. J. MILLER, JOHN GEORGE, K. SUMMERS, L. P. TEATS, and DAN LYLE, known to me to be the persons whose names are subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial seal the day and year first above written.

_____/S/ EDWARD C. BUTLER (SEAL)

Notary Public in and for the State of Idaho, residing at Lewiston therein. My Commission expires September 14, 1937.

Filed with Secretary of State...April 30, 1937.

Filed with Nez Perce County....May 4, 1937.

BYLAWS

MEMBERSHIP AND JOINT MEMBERSHIP

ARTICLE I, SECTION 1(A) AND 1(B)

Section 1(A) - Membership

Any person or entity including a firm, corporation, association, partnership, limited liability company, trust, estate, joint venture, federal agency, state or political subdivision or body politic, becomes a member of the Cooperative and consents to being a member upon purchasing, using, or requesting or agreeing to use electric energy and capacity provided by the Cooperative and:

- (a) Submitting to the Cooperative a completed signed application for membership on the form approved by the Board of Directors;
- (b) Agrees to comply with and be bound by the Articles of Incorporation of the Cooperative, these Bylaws and any amendments thereto, and such rules, regulations, and written policies as are and as may from time to time be adopted by the Board of Directors, provided, however, that no person or entity shall become a member unless and until the applicant has been accepted for membership by the Board of Directors. No person or entity may own more than one (1) membership in the Cooperative.

Section 1(B) – Joint Membership

Two natural persons may jointly become a member and their application for a joint membership may be accepted in accordance with these Bylaws and the Cooperative's policies and procedures provided the applicants comply jointly with the provisions of this Article.

The following provisions shall apply to the holders of a joint membership:

- (a) The presence at a meeting of either or both shall be regarded as the presence of one member and shall constitute a joint waiver of notice of the meeting.
- (b) A joint membership shall be entitled to one vote which shall not be divided. The vote of a joint membership may be cast by either of the holders of the membership unless the Cooperative is notified in writing prior to voting that the holders of the joint membership are in disagreement as to voting, in which case the Cooperative shall then require the holders of the joint membership to vote jointly.
- (c) A waiver of notice signed by either or both shall constitute a joint waiver.

- (d) Notice to either shall constitute notice to both.
- (e) Expulsion of either shall terminate the joint membership.
- (f) Withdrawal of either shall terminate the joint membership.
- (g) Either but not both may be elected or appointed as a Board of Director in accordance with the Cooperative's Bylaws, provided that the person seeking office meets the qualifications for such office.
- (h) All deposits and refundable fees or contributions paid to and held by the Cooperative in connection with any service to a joint membership and all capital credits allocated to such joint members shall be deemed owned by the joint members in joint tenancy unless such ownership is changed by written instrument delivered to the Cooperative in accordance with such policies and rules as the Cooperative may adopt.

MEMBERS - MEMBERSHIP
ARTICLE I, SECTION 2

The membership shall be activated when a member is receiving electric service at an account in the member's name.

MEMBERS - PURCHASE OF ELECTRIC SERVICE
ARTICLE I, SECTION 3

Each member shall, as soon as electric service shall be available, purchase from the Cooperative electric service and shall pay therefore monthly or at such other times as may be otherwise specifically provided in any written contract between the member and the Cooperative at rates which shall from time to time be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors; provided, however, that the electric energy and capacity which the Cooperative shall furnish to any member may be limited to such an amount as the Board of Directors shall from time to time determine and that each member shall pay to the Cooperative such minimum amount per month as shall be fixed by the Board of Directors from time to time, regardless of the amount of electric energy and capacity consumed. Each member shall also pay all obligations which may from time to time become due and payable by such member to the Cooperative as and when the same shall become due and payable.

MEMBERS - NON-LIABILITY FOR DEBTS OF THE COOPERATIVE.
ARTICLE I, SECTION 4

The private property of the members of the Cooperative shall be exempt from the execution for the debts of the Cooperative and no member shall be individually liable or responsible for any

debts or liabilities of the Cooperative.

MEMBERS - EXPULSION OF MEMBERS
ARTICLE I, SECTION 5

The Board of Directors of the Cooperative may, by the affirmative vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors, expel any member who shall have violated or refused to comply with any of the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of the Cooperative or these Bylaws or any rules, regulations or written policies adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors.

MEMBERS - WITHDRAWAL OF MEMBERSHIP
ARTICLE I, SECTION 6

Any member may withdraw from membership upon payment in full of all debts and liabilities of such member to the Cooperative and upon compliance with such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

MEMBERS - TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP
ARTICLE I, SECTION 7

(a) Membership in the Cooperative and a certificate representing the same shall not be transferable. Upon death, cessation of existence, expulsion, dissolution, or withdrawal of a member, the membership of such member shall thereupon terminate and the certificate of membership of such member shall be null and void. Termination of membership in any manner shall not release the member from debts or liabilities of such member to the Cooperative nor affect the right, title and interest of the member in the assets of the Cooperative.

(b) The membership of any member of the Cooperative may be terminated in the event such member permanently ceases to receive electric service from the Cooperative.

(c) When a membership is held jointly, upon the death of either joint member, such membership shall be deemed to be held solely by the survivor, with the same effect as though such membership had been originally issued solely to such survivor and the joint membership certificate may be surrendered by the survivor. Upon the recording of such death on the books of the Cooperative, the certificate may be reissued to and in the name of such survivor; provided, however, that the estate of the deceased joint member shall not be released from any membership debts or liabilities to the Cooperative.

(d) Upon the separation or divorce of the holders of a joint membership, absent agreement of the parties, such membership shall be terminated and membership patronage divided equally between the parties. A new membership shall be issued in the name of the party who remains in or continues to occupy or use the premises.

MEMBERS - REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
ARTICLE I, SECTION 8

Any member may bring charges against an officer or Director by filing them in writing with the Secretary, together with a petition signed by at least ten percent (10%) of the members of the Cooperative requesting the removal of the officer or Director in question. Such petition shall specify with particularity the charges against the officer or Director whose removal is sought. No officer or Director shall be subject to removal hereunder except for conduct of such officer or Director which is inimical or detrimental to the interests of the Cooperative. Upon receipt of such petition, the Secretary shall immediately deliver or cause to be delivered, a copy thereof to the Director or officer whose removal is sought. If the Secretary receives such petition at least thirty (30) days, but not more than sixty (60) days, prior to the next Annual Meeting of the Members, the matter of the removal of such officer or Director shall be placed upon the agenda for such Annual Meeting to be acted upon by the members at such Annual Meeting. If the Secretary receives such petition at any other time the Secretary shall promptly call a Special Meeting of the Members to act upon such petition. Notice of such Special Meeting shall be given to all members at the time and in the manner provided in Article II, Section 3, of these Bylaws. The question of removal of such officer or Director shall be voted upon at such Annual or Special Meeting of the Members of the Cooperative, after a hearing conducted at such meeting, and during such hearing any member and the officer or Director sought to be removed shall be entitled to be heard and present evidence and may be represented by legal counsel. Any vacancy in any office created as a result of the removal of any officer of the Cooperative shall be filled by the Board of Directors of the Cooperative promptly following the meeting at which said officer is removed. Any vacancy created in the Board of Directors as the result of the action of the members of the Cooperative in removing said Director shall be filled by the members of the Cooperative at the Annual or Special Meeting of the Members of the Cooperative at which such Director is removed. No member of the Cooperative shall be eligible to fill the vacancy on the Board of Directors of the Cooperative, unless such member meets all other requirements and qualifications of such office. Any Director so elected by the members of the Cooperative pursuant to this section shall serve as a member of the Board of Directors only until the expiration of the term of office for which the Director who has been removed was elected.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS - ANNUAL MEETING
ARTICLE II, SECTION 1

The Annual Meeting of the Members shall be held between the 15th day of October and the 30th day of November, inclusive, of each year, at such place within the service area of the Cooperative as shall be determined, from time to time, by the Board of Directors and as shall be designated in the notice of the meeting for the purpose of electing Directors, passing upon reports covering the previous fiscal year and transacting such other business as may come before the meeting. If the day fixed for the Annual Meeting shall be a Sunday or a legal holiday, such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day. If the election of Directors shall not be held on the day designated herein for any Annual Meeting, or at any adjournment thereof, the Board of Directors shall cause the election to be held at a Special Meeting of the Members as

soon thereafter as conveniently may be. Failure to hold the Annual Meeting at the designated time shall not work a forfeiture or dissolution of the Cooperative.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS - SPECIAL MEETINGS

ARTICLE II, SECTION 2

Special Meetings of the Members may be called by at least three (3) Directors or upon a written request signed by at least ten percent (10%) of all the members and it shall then be the duty of the Secretary to cause notice of such meeting to be given as herein provided. Special Meetings of the Members may be held at any place within the service area of the Cooperative specified in the notice of the Special Meeting.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS - NOTICE OF MEMBERS' MEETING

ARTICLE II, SECTION 3

Written, printed, or electronically transmitted notice of any meeting of the members stating the place, date and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a Special Meeting, the purpose or purposes for which such Special Meeting is called, shall be delivered to each member entitled to vote at such meeting not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting by or at the direction of the President, or the Secretary, or the officers or persons calling the meeting.

Except as otherwise provided in these in these Bylaws, any such written notice shall be deemed to have been delivered if, within the time period above mentioned: (1) such written notice is personally delivered to the member; (2) such written notice is deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his/her address as it appears on the records of the Cooperative, with postage paid thereof; (3) such written notice is conspicuously displayed in a publication such as a magazine, newsletter or like publication and such publication is deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the Cooperative, with postage paid thereon; or (4) such written notice is delivered when electronically sent to a member at his/her electronic mail address as it appears on the records of the Cooperative.

The failure of any member to receive such written, printed, or electronically transmitted notice of any meeting of the members shall not invalidate any action which may be taken by the members at any such meeting.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS - QUORUM

ARTICLE II, SECTION 4

The members present at regular Annual Meetings of the Members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meeting.

At Special Meetings of the Members not less than seventy-five (75) members present shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at such meeting.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS - VOTING

ARTICLE II, SECTION 5

Each member shall be entitled to one (1) vote and no more upon each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of the members. At all meetings of the members at which a quorum is present all questions shall be decided by a vote of a majority of the members voting, except as otherwise provided by law, the Articles of Incorporation of the Cooperative, or these Bylaws. If two or more natural persons hold a joint membership, they shall jointly be entitled to one (1) vote and no more upon each matter submitted to a vote at a meeting of the members as provided in Article I, Section 1, of these Bylaws.

The individual presiding over the member vote may require the members to vote by voice. If the individual presiding over the member vote determines, in good faith, that a voice vote is not sufficient to accurately determine the vote results, then the members shall vote by written ballot or in any other reasonable manner determined by the Board of Directors.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS - ORDER OF BUSINESS

ARTICLE II, SECTION 6

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board of Directors shall determine the agenda, program, and/or order of business for any meeting of members.

The order of business at the Annual Meeting of the Members shall be essentially as follows:

1. Call the meeting to order and verify quorum.
2. Reading of the notice of the meeting and proof of the publication or mailing thereof, or the waiver or waivers of notice of the meeting, as the case may be.
3. Reading of unapproved minutes of previous meetings of the members and the taking of necessary action thereon.
4. Presentation and consideration of, and acting upon, reports of officers, Directors and committees.
5. Election of Directors.
6. Unfinished business.
7. New business.

8. Adjournment.

**DIRECTORS - GENERAL POWERS
ARTICLE III, SECTION 1**

The business and affairs of the Cooperative shall be managed under the Board of Director's direction and subject to the Board of Director's oversight. The Board of Directors shall consist of (7) Directors. The Board of Directors shall reasonably administer and enforce these Bylaws and exercise all of the powers of the Cooperative except such as are by law or by the Articles of Incorporation of the Cooperative or by these Bylaws conferred upon or reserved to the members of the Cooperative.

**DIRECTORS - DISTRICTS DEFINED
ARTICLE III, SECTION 2**

The Cooperative shall be divided into seven (7) districts. The Board of Directors shall determine the boundaries of said seven (7) districts. The membership of each district shall be approximately equal. Approximately every five (5) years, the Board of Directors shall make such boundary adjustments, if any, as are necessary in order to maintain an approximate equal number of members in each district.

Within sixty (60) days following a Director District revision, and at least thirty (30) days before the next Annual Meeting of the Members, the Cooperative must notify in writing, members affected by the Director District revision.

Except as otherwise provided in these in these Bylaws, any such written notice shall be deemed to have been delivered if, within the time period above mentioned: (1) such written notice is personally delivered to the member; (2) such written notice is deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his/her address as it appears on the records of the Cooperative, with postage paid thereof; (3) such written notice is conspicuously displayed in a publication such as a magazine, newsletter or like publication and such publication is deposited in the United States mail addressed to the member at his address as it appears on the records of the Cooperative, with postage paid thereon; or (4) such written notice is delivered when electronically sent to a member at his/her electronic mail address as it appears on the records of the Cooperative.

**DIRECTORS - QUALIFICATIONS AND TENURE OF DIRECTORS, NOMINATIONS,
ELECTIONS
ARTICLE III, SECTIONS 3(A), (B), (C)**

Section 3(a), Qualifications and Tenure of Directors

Each Director shall serve a term of three (3) years and until the successor shall have been duly elected and qualified unless earlier removed pursuant to the terms of these Bylaws.

A member shall be eligible to become or remain a Director if they maintain an account in the District for which they are to be elected and their principal residence, as defined by Federal Tax Law, is located in that District and served by the Cooperative. If a Director ceases to maintain an account and principal residence in the District in which he/she was elected, the Board of Directors shall declare the office of said Director vacant and fill the vacancy in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this Article.

If a Director fails to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors may declare the office of said Director vacant and fill the vacancy in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this Article.

No member of the Cooperative shall be eligible to become or remain a Director, or to hold any position of trust in the Cooperative, who is not a bona fide resident in the area served by the Cooperative, or who is in any way employed by, or materially financially interested in a competing enterprise or business including wholesale or retail bulk propane, or an enterprise or business selling electric energy and capacity or supplies to the Cooperative. If a Director moves from his/her District or otherwise becomes disqualified by this provision, the Board of Directors may declare the office of Director vacant and fill the vacancy in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this Article.

No employee of Clearwater Power Company or an employee of a competing firm selling electric energy and capacity or supplies or wholesale or retail bulk propane shall be eligible to become a Director during the course of his/her employment or for a period of five (5) years after the last day of employment with Clearwater Power Company or said competing firm.

Section 3(b), Nominations

It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to appoint annually a Committee on nominations consisting of one (1) member of the Cooperative residing in each of the Districts of the Cooperative as those Districts are defined in Article III, Section 2 of these Bylaws. No member of the Board of Directors shall be appointed a member of such Committee.

The Committee shall prepare and post at the principal office of the Cooperative at least thirty (30) days before the meeting, a list of nominees for Directors as nominated by said Committee. The Secretary shall mail with the notice of such meeting a statement of the number of Directors to be elected showing the nominations made by the Committee. Nothing contained herein shall, however, prevent additional nominations to be made from the floor at the meeting of the members. The members may, at any meeting at which a Director or Directors shall be removed by a vote of the members as herein provided, elect a successor or successors thereto without compliance with the foregoing provisions with respect to nominations. Notwithstanding anything contained in this section, failure to comply with any of the provisions of this section

shall not affect in any manner whatsoever the validity of any election of Directors.

Section 3(c), Elections

Consistent with Article II, Section 5, the election of Directors shall be by voice vote or ballot on which each member voting may designate the name of the candidate from each District said member desires to cast his/her vote for. Cumulative voting shall not be allowed. Qualified candidates receiving the highest number of votes for each Director position shall be elected for the term specified in Section 3 (a) of Article III of these Bylaws; all tie votes will be resolved by drawing lots. If only one individual is nominated to run for election for a Director position, then the individual presiding at the meeting may announce that the nominated individual is elected by acclamation and no vote is required.

DIRECTORS - VACANCY ARTICLE III, SECTION 4

Subject to the provisions of these Bylaws with respect to the removal of Directors, vacancies occurring on the Board of Directors shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Directors. No member of the Cooperative shall be so elected to the Board of Directors to fill any such vacancy unless such member be a resident of the District in which the Director whose death or resignation created such vacancy was a resident. Any Director so elected by the Board of Directors to fill such vacancy shall serve until the next Annual Meeting of the Members of the Cooperative. At such Annual Meeting, the members of the Cooperative shall elect a member of the Cooperative who resides in the same District as the Director whose death or resignation created such vacancy, and the member so elected at such Annual Meeting shall serve as a member of the Board of Directors only until the term of office for which the Director whose death or resignation created such vacancy was elected shall expire.
written policy.

DIRECTORS - COMPENSATION ARTICLE III, SECTION 5

A Director is not an employee of the Cooperative. Directors, as such, shall not receive any salary for their services, but by resolution of the Board of Directors, a fixed sum, which may include insurance benefits and expenses of attendance, if any, may be allowed for attendance at any meeting of the Board of Directors or meetings of associated organizations attended by any Directors as authorized by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors must determine and approve the manner, method, and amount of any Director fixed sum.

DIRECTORS - RULES AND REGULATIONS ARTICLE III, SECTION 6

The Board of Directors shall have power to make and adopt such policies, rules, and regulations,

not inconsistent with law, the Articles of Incorporation of the Cooperative or these Bylaws, as it may deem advisable for the management, administration and regulation of the business and affairs of the Cooperative.

DIRECTORS - ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS

ARTICLE III, SECTION 7

The Board of Directors shall cause to be established and maintained a complete accounting system which among other things subject to applicable laws and rules and regulations of any regulatory body, shall conform to such accounting system as may from time to time be designated by the Administrator of the Rural Utilities Service of the United States of America. All accounts of the Cooperative may be examined by a committee of the Board of Directors which may render reports at regular Board Meetings of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall also after the close of each fiscal year cause to be made a full and complete audit of the accounts, books and financial condition of the Cooperative as of the end of such fiscal year. Such audit reports or summaries thereof shall be submitted to the members at the following Annual Meeting.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS - REGULAR MEETINGS

ARTICLE IV, SECTION 1

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors may be held monthly at such time and place in Nez Perce County, State of Idaho, as the Board of Directors may provide by resolution. Such regular monthly meetings may be held without notice other than such resolution fixing the time and place thereof.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS - SPECIAL MEETINGS

ARTICLE IV, SECTION 2

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or any three (3) Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board of Directors may fix the time and place (which place shall be within the service area of the Cooperative), for the holding of any special meeting of the Board of Directors called by them.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS - NOTICE

ARTICLE IV, SECTION 3

Notice of the time and place of any Special Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least five (5) days previous thereto, by reasonable notice, delivered personally, by facsimile, electronically, or mailed to each Director at his/her last known address. Such written notice is delivered when electronically sent to a Director's electronic mail address as it appears on the records of the Cooperative or if mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail so addressed with postage prepaid.

The notice may, or may not, specify the purpose of the Special Board Meeting. The attendance of a Director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except in case a Director shall attend a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting shall not have been lawfully called or convened.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS - QUORUM ARTICLE IV, SECTION 4

A majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board of Directors, provided, that if less than a majority of the Directors is present at said meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting from time to time without further notice.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS - MANNER OF ACTING ARTICLE IV, SECTION 5

The act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors.

Any action that may be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the Directors. Such consent shall have the same effect as a unanimous vote.

OFFICERS - NUMBER ARTICLE V, SECTION 1

The officers of the Cooperative shall be a President, Vice-President, Secretary-Treasurer, and such other officers as may be determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.

OFFICERS - ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE ARTICLE V, SECTION 2

The officers shall be elected annually by and from the Board of Directors at the first meeting of the Board of Directors held after each Annual Meeting of the Members by affirmative vote of a majority of Directors in office. If the election of officers shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently may be. Each officer shall hold office until the first meeting of the Board of Directors following the next succeeding Annual Meeting of the Members or until his/her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified, subject to the provisions of these Bylaws with respect to the removal of officers.

OFFICERS AND/OR AGENTS - REMOVAL ARTICLE V, SECTION 3

Whenever, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, the best interests of the Cooperative will be served thereby, any officer elected by the Board of Directors may be removed from office by the vote of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors and the appointment of any agent previously selected by the Board of Directors may be rescinded or otherwise terminated by the majority vote of a quorum of Directors.

**OFFICERS - VACANCY
ARTICLE V, SECTION 4**

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, a vacancy in any office may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

**OFFICERS - PRESIDENT
ARTICLE V, SECTION 5**

The President:

(a) shall be the principal executive officer of the Cooperative and shall preside at all meetings of the members and of the Board of Directors;

(b) may sign, with the Secretary-Treasurer, certificates of membership, the issue of which shall have been authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors, and may sign any deeds, mortgages, deeds of trust, notes, bonds, contracts or other instruments authorized by signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws to some other officer or agent of the Cooperative, or shall be required by law to be otherwise signed or executed; and

(c) in general shall perform all duties incident to the office of the President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

**OFFICERS - VICE-PRESIDENT
ARTICLE V, SECTION 6**

In the absence of the President, or in the event of the President's inability or refusal to act, the Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President, and when so acting shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President and shall perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

**OFFICERS – SECRETARY-TREASURER
ARTICLE V, SECTION 7**

The Secretary-Treasurer shall:

- (a) keep the minutes of the members of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose;
- (b) see that all notices are duly given in accordance with these Bylaws or as required by law;
- (c) be custodian of the corporate records and of the seal of the Cooperative and see that the seal of the Cooperative is affixed to all certificates of membership prior to the issue thereof and to all documents, the execution of which on behalf of the Cooperative under its seal is duly authorized in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws;
- (d) keep a register of the address of each member which shall be furnished to the Secretary by such member;
- (e) sign with the President certificates of membership, the issue of which shall have been authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors unless said action is delegated pursuant to the terms of Section 5 (b);
- (f) have general charge of the books of the Cooperative in which a record of the members is kept;
- (g) keep on file at all times a complete copy of the Bylaws of the Cooperative containing all amendments, properly certified by a majority of the Directors and the Secretary, which copy shall always be open to the inspection of any member, and at the expense of the Cooperative post the Bylaws on the Cooperative's webpage or forward a copy of the Bylaws and all amendments to each member; and
- (h) in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board of Directors.
- (i) have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Cooperative;
- (j) receive or cause to be received and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Cooperative from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Cooperative in such bank or banks as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws;
- (k) in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary-Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

OFFICERS – GENERAL MANAGER
ARTICLE V, SECTION 9

The Board of Directors may appoint a General Manager who may be, but shall not be required to be, a member of the Cooperative. The General Manager shall perform such duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time require, and shall have such authority as may from time to time be vested by the Board of Directors.

SUBJECT: OFFICERS - BONDS OF OFFICERS
POLICY: ARTICLE V, SECTION 10

The Board of Directors may require the Secretary-Treasurer or any other officer of the Cooperative charged with responsibility for the custody of any of its funds or property, to give bond at the cost of the Cooperative in such sums and with such surety as the Board of Directors shall determine. The Board of Directors in its discretion may also require any other officer, agent or employee of the Cooperative to give bond at the cost of the Cooperative in such amount and with such surety as it shall determine.

OFFICERS - COMPENSATION
ARTICLE V, SECTION 11

The compensation, if any, of any officer, agent or employee who is also a Director or close relative of a Director shall be determined as provided elsewhere in these Bylaws, and the powers, duties, and compensation of any other officer, agents and employees shall be fixed by the Board of Directors; provided that the Board of Directors may authorize the General Manager to fix the powers, duties and compensation of agents and employees within limits from time to time established by the Board of Directors.

OFFICERS - REPORTS
ARTICLE V, SECTION 12

The officers of the Cooperative shall submit at each Annual Meeting of the Members reports covering the business of the Cooperative for the previous fiscal year and showing the condition of the Cooperative at the close of such fiscal year.

CONTRACTS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS - CONTRACTS
ARTICLE VI, SECTION 1

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, employee or employees, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name and on behalf of the Cooperative, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

CONTRACTS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS - CHECKS, DRAFTS, ETC.
ARTICLE VI, SECTION 2

All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, and all notes, bonds or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Cooperative shall be signed by such officer

or officers, agent or agents, employee or employees of the Cooperative and in such manner as shall, from time to time, be determined by Resolution of the Board of Directors.

CONTRACTS, CHECKS AND DEPOSITS - DEPOSITS
ARTICLE VI, SECTION 3

All funds of the Cooperative shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Cooperative in such bank or banks or otherwise invested in such manner as the Board of Directors may select.

MEMBERSHIP CERTIFICATES - CERTIFICATE OF MEMBERSHIP
ARTICLE VII, SECTION 1

Membership in the Cooperative shall be evidenced by a Certificate of Membership which shall be in such form and shall contain such provisions as shall be determined by the Board of Directors not contrary to, or inconsistent with, the Articles of Incorporation of the Cooperative or these Bylaws, and the Corporate Seal shall be affixed thereto.

MEMBERSHIP CERTIFICATES - LOST CERTIFICATE
ARTICLE VII, SECTION 2

In case of a lost, destroyed or mutilated certificate, a new certificate may be issued therefor upon such terms and such indemnity to the Cooperative as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

NON-PROFIT OPERATION - INTEREST OR DIVIDENDS ON CAPITAL
PROHIBITED
ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 1

The Cooperative shall at all times be operated on a cooperative non-profit basis for the mutual benefit of its patrons. No interest or dividend shall be paid or payable by the Cooperative on any capital furnished by its patrons.

NON-PROFIT OPERATION - PATRONAGE IN CONNECTION WITH FURNISHING
ELECTRIC ENERGY AND CAPACITY
ARTICLE VIII, SECTION 2

In furnishing of electric energy and capacity, the Cooperative's operations shall be so conducted that all patrons will through their patronage furnish capital for the Cooperative. In order to induce patronage and to assure the Cooperative will operate on a non-profit basis, the Cooperative is obligated to account on a patronage basis to all its patrons for all amounts received and receivable from the furnishing of electric energy and capacity. All such amounts in excess of operating costs and expenses at the moment of receipt by the Cooperative are received with the understanding that they are furnished by the patrons as capital. The Cooperative is obligated to pay by credits to a capital account for each patron, on a patronage basis, all such amounts in excess of operating costs and expenses. The books and records of the Cooperative

shall be set up and kept in such a manner that at the end of each fiscal year commencing in 1953, the amount of capital, if any, so furnished by each patron is clearly reflected in an appropriate record to the capital account of each patron, and the Cooperative shall within a reasonable time after the close of the fiscal year notify each patron of the amount of capital so credited to his/her account. All such amounts credited to the capital account of any patron shall have the same status as though they had been paid to the patron in cash pursuant of a legal obligation to do so and the patron had then furnished the Cooperative the corresponding amount of capital.

All other amounts received by the Cooperative from its operations in excess of costs and expenses shall, insofar as permitted by law, be (a) used to offset any losses incurred during the current or any prior fiscal year and (b) to the extent not needed for that purpose, allocated to its patrons on a patronage basis and any amount so allocated shall be included as a part of the capital credited to the accounts of patrons, as herein provided.

In the event of dissolution or liquidation of the Cooperative, after all outstanding indebtedness shall have been paid, outstanding capital credits shall be retired without priority on a pro-rata basis. If, at any time prior to dissolution or liquidation, the Board of Directors shall determine that the financial condition of the Cooperative will not be impaired thereof, the capital then credited to patrons' accounts may be retired in full or in part subject to the limitations set forth herein below.

The Cooperative may retire and pay capital credits only if the Board of Directors determines that the retirement and payment will not adversely impact the Cooperative's financial condition. The Cooperative shall not, including retirement of a decedent's capital credits, retire any capital credits unless after the proposed retirement the equity of the Cooperative shall equal at least thirty percent (30%) of the Cooperative's total assets. Consistent with this Bylaw, the retirement and payment of capital credits are in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors and are not affected by previous retirements and payments. The manner, method and timing of retiring and paying capital credits may be determined by the Board of Directors.

Capital credited to the accounts of each patron shall be assigned only on the books of the Cooperative pursuant to written instruction from the assignor and only to successors in interest or successors in occupancy in all or a part of such patrons' premises served by the Cooperative unless the Board of Directors, acting under policies of general application, shall determine otherwise.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Bylaws, the Board of Directors, in its discretion, shall have the power at any time upon the death of any patron who is a natural person, if the legal representatives of his/her estate shall request in writing that the capital credited to any such patron be retired prior to the time such capital would otherwise be retired under the provisions of these Bylaws, to retire capital credited to such patron, subject to any such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors, acting under policies of general application, and the legal representatives of such patron's estate shall agree upon; provided, however, that the financial condition of the Cooperative will not be impaired.

Regardless of a statute of limitations or other limitation, after retiring capital credits allocated to a patron or former patron, the Cooperative may recoup, offset, or setoff an amount owed to the Cooperative by the patron or former patron, including any compound interest, late payment fee,

and other fees, by reducing the amount of retired capital credits paid to the patron, former patron, or their legal representative, by the amount owed to the Cooperative.

The patrons of the Cooperative, by dealing with the Cooperative, acknowledge that the terms and provisions of the Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws shall constitute and be a contract between the Cooperative and each patron, and both the Cooperative and the patrons are bound by such contract as fully as though each patron had individually signed a separate instrument containing such terms and provisions. The provisions of this Article shall be called to the attention of each patron of the Cooperative by posting in a conspicuous place in the Cooperative's office.

WAIVER OF NOTICE ARTICLE IX

Any member or any Director may waive, in writing, any notice of meeting required to be given by these Bylaws.

DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY ARTICLE X

The Cooperative may not sell, mortgage, lease or otherwise dispose of or encumber any of its property other than:

- (a) Property which in the judgment of the Board of Directors neither is nor will be necessary or useful in operating and maintaining the Cooperative system and facilities; provided, however, that all sales of such property shall not, in any one (1) year, exceed in value ten percent (10%) of the value of all the property of the Cooperative;
- (b) Services of all kinds, including electric service.

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, the Board of Directors, without authorization by the members, shall have full power and authority to borrow money from the United States of America, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, or any corporation, cooperative association, or other organization of which this Cooperative is a member or shareholder thereof, and in connection with such borrowings, to authorize the making and issuance of bonds, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, and to secure the payment thereof, to authorize the execution and delivery of a mortgage or mortgages or a deed or deeds of trust upon, or the pledging or encumbrances of any or all of the property, assets, rights, privileges, licenses, franchises and permits of the Cooperative, whether acquired or to be acquired, and wherever situated, all upon such terms and conditions as the Directors shall determine.

FISCAL YEAR ARTICLE XI

The fiscal year of the Cooperative shall be as fixed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors.

MEMBERSHIP IN OTHER ORGANIZATIONS
ARTICLE XII

The Directors shall have full power and authority on behalf of the Cooperative to purchase stock in, or to become a member of any corporation, association or cooperative for the purpose of advancing or protecting the interests of Clearwater Power Company.

SEAL
ARTICLE XIII

The corporate seal of the Cooperative shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Cooperative and the words “Corporate Seal, Idaho”.

AMENDMENTS
ARTICLE XV

The Bylaws of the Corporation may be amended as provided by the laws of the State of Idaho; provided that no Bylaw shall be altered, repealed or amended at any Annual or Special Meeting of the Members of the Cooperative unless the notice of such Annual or Special Meeting includes, or is accompanied by, a copy of any such proposed Bylaw amendment or alteration to be presented at such meeting or includes notice that a proposal to repeal a specific Bylaw or Bylaws will be acted upon at such meeting.

Provided that any proposal from a Member(s) to amend, alter, or repeal any existing Bylaws must be presented to Clearwater Power Company in writing at the Lewiston headquarters building on or before July 31st during normal business hours, in order to be included on the agenda for the Annual Meeting of Members for that calendar year.

Any alteration, amendment or repeal of the Bylaws must be certified by a majority of the Directors and the Secretary-Treasurer of the Cooperative, and recorded in the book of Bylaws kept in the registered office of the Cooperative.

MISCELLANEOUS
ARTICLE XVI

Section 1 – Electronic Documents and Actions. If a member or Director owns, controls, or has reasonable access to the applicable or necessary hardware and software, then, regardless of a contrary Bylaw, as determined by the Board of Directors, and as allowed by Law:

- (a) the member or Director consents and agrees to: (A) use, accept, send, receive, and transmit an Electronic signature, contract, record, notice, vote, communication, comment, and other document regarding an action, transaction, business, meeting, or activity with, for, or involving the Cooperative (“Electronic Document”); (B) Electronically conduct an action, transaction, business, meeting, or activity with, for, or involving the Cooperative; and (C) Electronically give or confirm this consent and agreement;
- (b) an Electronic Document sent or transmitted to, or received or transmitted from, the member or Director satisfies a requirement imposed by the Governing Documents that the underlying signature, contract, record, notice, vote, communication, comment, or other document be in writing;
- (c) Electronically sending or transmitting an Electronic Document to, or receiving or transmitting an Electronic Document from, the member or Director satisfies a requirement imposed by the Governing Documents that the underlying signature, contract, record, notice, vote, communication, comment, or other document be sent or received personally or by mail; and
- (d) the member or Director Electronically taking an action provided in these Bylaws satisfies a requirement imposed by the Governing Documents regarding the form or manner of taking the action.
- (e) Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, an Electronic Document Electronically sent or transmitted to a member or Director or former member or Director at the member or Director or former member’s or Director’s last known Electronic address is considered sent, received, transmitted, and effective on the date sent by the Cooperative. An Electronic Document Electronically received or transmitted from a member or Director or former member or Director is considered sent, received, transmitted, and effective on the date received by the Cooperative.
- (f) As used in these Bylaws, subject to the context requiring otherwise, and as determined by the Board of Directors:
 - (1) “Electronic” and “Electronically” mean relating to technology having electrical, digital, magnetic, wireless, optical, electromagnetic, or similar capabilities;
 - (2) To sign an Electronic Document means, with present intent to authenticate or adopt the Electronic Document, to attach to, or logically associate with, the Electronic Document an Electronic sound, symbol, or process; and
 - (3) Electronic transmission includes transmission through: (A) Electronic mail; (B) the Cooperative’s website; or (C) a website or information processing system that the Cooperative has designated or uses to send, receive, or transmit Electronic Documents or Electronic information, or to Electronically conduct an action, transaction, business, meeting, or activity.

Section 2 – Rules of Order. The rules contained in the current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the Cooperative in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these Bylaws and any special rules of order the Board of Directors may adopt.

Section 3 – Notice and Communication. In these Bylaws:

- (a) Notice and Communication Type. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, a notice or communication may be: (1) oral, written, or Electronic; and (2) communicated: (A) in person; (B) by telephone, telegraph, teletype, facsimile, Electronic communication or transmission, or other form of wire or wireless communication; (C) by mail or private carrier; or (D) if the above-listed forms of communicating are impractical, then by newspaper of general circulation in the area where published, or radio, television, or other form of public broadcast communication.

If addressed or delivered or transmitted to an address shown in the Cooperative's records, then a written or Electronic notice, communication, or report delivered or transmitted as part of a newsletter, magazine, or other publication regularly sent to members constitutes a written or Electronic notice, communication, or report to all members: (1) residing at the address; or (2) having the same address shown in the Cooperative's records.

- (b) Notice and Communication Effective Date. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws:

- (1) an oral notice or communication is effective when communicated, if communicated in a comprehensible manner; and
- (2) a written notice or communication is effective upon the earliest of: (A) when received; (B) with the postmark evidencing deposit in the United States Mail, and if correctly addressed and mailed with first class postage affixed, then five days after deposit in the United States Mail, or if correctly addressed and mailed with other than first class, registered, or certified postage affixed, then thirty days after deposit in the United States Mail; or (C) if sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, and if the return receipt is signed by, or on behalf of, the addressee, then on the date indicated on the return receipt.

- (c) A written notice or communication is correctly addressed to a member if addressed to the member's address shown in the Cooperative's records.

If: (1) the Cooperative sends or transmits two written or Electronic notices or communications to a former member or former patron at the address shown in the Cooperative's records; (2) both notices or communications are sent or transmitted to the same address; and (3) both notices or communications are returned to the Cooperative as undeliverable or the Cooperative is informed that neither notice or communication was deliverable, then, until the Cooperative receives a different address from the former member or former patron, the Cooperative is not required to send or transmit additional notices or communications to the former member or former patron.

Section 4 – Governing Law. These Bylaws must be governed by, and interpreted under, the laws of the State of Idaho.

Section 5 – Titles and Headings. Titles and headings of Bylaw articles, sections, and subsections are for convenience and reference, and do not affect the interpretation, construction, or application of a Bylaw article, section, or subsection.

Section 6 – Partial Invalidity. When reasonably possible, every Bylaw article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or provision (collectively, “Bylaw Provision”) must be interpreted in a manner by which the Bylaw Provision is valid. The invalidation of a Bylaw Provision by an Entity possessing proper jurisdiction and authority, which invalidation does not alter the fundamental rights, duties, and relationship between the Cooperative and members, does not invalidate the remaining Bylaw Provisions.

Section 7 – Cumulative Remedies. The rights and remedies provided in these Bylaws are cumulative. The Cooperative or a member asserting a right or remedy provided in these Bylaws does not preclude the Cooperative or member from asserting other rights or remedies provided in these Bylaws.

Section 8 – Entire Agreement. Between the Cooperative and a member, the Governing Documents: (1) constitute the entire agreement; and (2) supersede and replace a prior or contemporaneous oral, written, Electronic communication or representation.

Section 9 – Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws: (1) the duties, obligations, and liabilities imposed upon, and the rights granted to, the Cooperative by these Bylaws are binding upon, and inure to the benefit of, the Cooperative’s successors and assigns; and (2) the duties, obligations, and liabilities imposed upon a member by these Bylaws are binding upon the member’s successors and assigns. The binding nature of the duties, obligations, and liabilities imposed by these Bylaws upon the successors and assigns of the Cooperative or a member does not relieve the Cooperative or member of the duties, obligations, and liabilities imposed by these Bylaws.

Section 10 – Waiver. The failure of the Cooperative to assert a right or remedy provided in these Bylaws does not waive the right or remedy provided in these Bylaws.

Section 11 – Lack of Notice. The failure of a member or Director to receive notice of a meeting, action, or vote does not affect, or invalidate, an action or vote taken by the members or Board of Directors.

Statement of Nondiscrimination

Clearwater Power Company is an Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer and will comply with all laws affecting the employment and placement of employees. We will recruit, employ and promote employees in all job classifications without regard to race, color, sex, age, religion, national origin, disability or veteran status. In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/parental status, income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or incident. Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact the responsible Agency or USDA's TARGET Center at (202)720-2600 (voice and TTY) or contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800)877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English. To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html and at any USDA office or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by: (1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; (2) fax: (202) 690-7 442; or (3) email: program.intake@usda.gov. USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.